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SAR.ACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The trustees present their annual report togeiher with the financial statements and auditor's reporl of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2024 lo 31 August 2025. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The academy trusi operates a free school, Saracens High School, for pupils aged 11 to 19 serving a catchment
area in Colindale and Saracens Bell Lane, a primary academy for pupils aged 2 to 1 1 (Nursery to Year 6). in Hendon,
both in North West London. The academies respectively have a pupil capacity of '1 1iJO and had a roll of 1132 and
a pupil capacity of 472 and a roll of 403 in the school census on 3rd October2024.

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

Saracens Multi Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the mulli academy trust. The
trustees of Saracens Multi Academy Trust are also the direciors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law.
Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and Administrative Deiails on the preceding pages of this document.

Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charilable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding E10, for the debts and liabilities contracied before they ceased io be a
member.

Trustees' lndemnities

ln accordance wiih normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on School and Trust
business. The Risk Protection Arrangement provides cover up to €10,000,000 on any one claim.

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

Up to 9 Trustees, some of whom are the members of the Charitable Company for the purpose of company
law. are nominated by the Members to the Trust Board. The Articles of Association require that there are at

least 3 Trustees, but there is no maximum number The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), if he or she agrees to
be a Trustee may also be a member of the Trust Board. The Trustees rnay also co-opt Trustees. With the
exception of the CEO, Trustees are appointed for a fixed term of four years but are eligible for re-election at
the end of the fixed term. The time limit does not apply to the CEO. During the year. three new Trustees were
appointed. The Trust reviews the skills and experience of the Trust Board prior to recruiting their successors.
ln this case, Trustees with cyber security experience and those in the education sector were appointed. The

Trust is fortunate to have a waiting list of professionals wishing to join the Board.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the lnduction and Training of Trustees

Trustee and Governor Training continues to ensure that volunteers are up to date and able to fulfil their role

descriptions. New Trustees and Governors receive induction training and support from the CEO, Governance
Professional and Clerk to the Governing Bodies. Ongoing training is mandatory for all Trustees and Governors
and those undertaking specific roles undertake further appropriate subject training. All Trustees and Governors
undertake mandatory safeguarding and cyber securlty training every year.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUED}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31. AUGUST 2025

Organisational Structure

SMAT is governed by a Trust Board constituted under a Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association, The Board is responsible for ensuring that high standards of governance are maintained. lt
exercises its powers and functions with a view to fulfilling a largely strategic role in the running of the MAT,
addressing matters such as:

. Policy development and strategic direction
o Ensunng compliance with legal requirements

' EnsurinE sound management and administration
r Establishing and maintaining effective internal controls
r Management of all resources
. Monitoring of schools' performance, and
. Assessing and managing risk.

The Trust operates in accordance with a formal scheme of delegation and system of internal financial cont,ols.
The scheme defines the responsibilities of the Board, LGBs, CEO. CFOO and Principals.

ln 2025 the Trust reviewed lhe governance plan and revised jts non-financial scheme of delegation. A number
of functions are delegated to Local Governing Bodies ("LGB"). The LGBs are responsibie for supporting the
CEO ln monitoring key aspects of the school's performance such as progress and attainment of pupils, quality
of teaching and behavrour and safety of pupils.

The LGBs are informed by the Senior Leadership of its school The Senror Leadership of the school js
responsible for the school, its staff, its pupils and the education they receive.

Catherine Alcock was lhe CEO and Accounting Officer throughout the accountjng period.

Arrangements for setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The salaries of Key Management Personnei are evidence based and estabiished from pubiished data such as
public sec"tor pay scales. advertised salaries. salary surveys and media reports. The salaries of the CEO and
Principai are set by ihe Trust Board. Salaries of other teaching members of SLT are based on national
benchmarks for responsibility and size of schooi as well as experience of lhe individual. Prcgression for all
key management personnel is based on the Trust's performance management system. The Trusi prevtously
took part in an executive leadership salary benchmarking survey run by the Confederation of Schooi Trusls
and this year, in a MAT suppo.t staff benchmarking exercise by the National Governmenl Associatron.

During the year the Board delegated the arrangement for setting the pay and remuneration lor execulive directors
and senior management lo a new Pay Committee whose members comprise three trustees and the Chair oI the
Trust. This commiltee wiil review the perlormance of the executive directors anci ensure lhat succession planning
is in line wilh the plans of the Trust.

This committee also sets the band of annual pay increases for all staff. The Trust scheme of delegaiion sets out the
tesponsibility for pay increases for all staff to the CEO and the pay commitlee.

Trade Union Facility Time

No lime was spent as lrade union facility time during the accounting period.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Saracens Rugby Club is a partner of the Multi-Academy Trust but has no part !n :he operational running of the
schools, The Club and Saracens Sports Foundation have no tnfluence in the declsions of SMAT

Saracens Schools work closely with the Trust's strategjc partners. the Goldstar Federation. Middlesex
Universiiy and the Worshipful Company of Arbiiraiors.
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SARACENS MULT: ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT {CONTTNUED)
IOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Engagement with Employees (including disabled persons)

Employees have been consulted on issues of concern to them by means of staff briefings and have been kept
informed on speclfic matters directly by management. The Trust updates staff cn all new personnel policies
that may affect them. The Trust hoids'Disabiiity Confldent status in relation to employment practices in the
recruitmeni, selection. retention and training of disabied staff.

The Trust offers exit rntervrews for staff leaving the organisation and has an open-door oolicy of access to

senior management and the trust central team

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Other in a Business Relationship with the Trust

The Trust recogntses and values the strong :elationships that exist belween il.s Academies and staff with
suppirers. customers and others including beneficiaries, funders and the wider community The Trust carr:es

out professronai and robust procurement tender procedures often including face to face discussions to ensule
appropriate compatibiiity for all partres, sign annual and longer{erm supplier a(Jreements ard pay tnvoices
promptly. We comply with Department for Education compiiance requirem,onts linked to our funding
agreeme.t, and similarly wtth other grant making bodies, where appropriate. V/e communicate clearly and

directly with families and carers as well as members of the lvrder- community rn relation 1o provision of services
(including catering, uniforms. lettings and wrap-around childcare).

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

SMAT s principal activrty is io advance. for the public benefit, education in the United Kingdom, by establishing,
maintaintng, carrying on, managing a.d developing schools offerrng a broad and balanced curriculum Sl\1AT

seeks io enrich lives by developing lifelong learners who wii! ihnve in life beyond school.

A iurther-opject is to promote the provisron oi lacilitres for r-ecreatton and other leisure activities for people iiving

close io the schools

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Saracens High School

The main objective for the 2024i25 financiai year was the High School's successful growth tc capacity, n lts

seventh year of operalion, including its first Year 13 and A level resuits. The sixth form offers a range of study

opiions to sult all student needs. including A levels, Digital and Health T ievels and Pre-Appreniiceship.

The schooi, which opened on 4 September 2018. rs non-selective and now orovides education for over 1100

pupils cf dif{erent abilities belween ihe ages of 11 and 19 The puprls are crawn from the local area in

accordance with the iocal authonly's admissron arrangements, which the school committed to for applicants

lor lhe 2025126 academic Year.

Saracens Bell Lane

Havrng joined the trust in August 2A24.lhe key objective for Saracens Berl Lane was lo move foruuard in lts

school improvement journey worki.rg for families in tne Hendon area. The school is non-selective and

provrdes eciucatron for over 370 puprls between lhe ages of 4 and '1 1. There is also a nursery for 2- and 3-yeat

olds and children s centre supporting local families.

The Trust schools arm lo improve the current and tuture lives of local pupils and famtlies anC to be amongsl

the highest pedorrning schools naiionaily.

Public Benefit

tn establashing Saracens High School and Saracens Bell Lane, the charity zlcted rn acccrdance with its

objectives. We have referred to the guidance contained in the Charity Commission's general gurdance cn

pu'blic beneflt when reviewing our aims and obiectives, All our charitable acttvilies are undertaken to further

our charitabie purposes for the public benefit. panr: /.



SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Strategic Report - Achievements and Performance

lr 2024-25 Saracens l.iig:: Scicci s ir:st Year '1 3 coLari lcct ir€ir A Le.;e! ar:d T L*vet examir'lat;cns a::ci ii:e
lnr.dyea."? .1 coh*i'iiaskirlerGCSIs Tl*fina! 3r.!rsssr'*sullsw;ji nq:tbetu!:jished;rt:l laref :*ii:eairtr:rrr
;f 2C25

Key Performance lndicators Key Stage 5

Tai:le shc,e;ing t-?sadl!{}e {igt;r*s !*r A Ls,;e! ar4 T Lev*! A{tainrn*r! with natianal ttata
A L EVELS (2025 n8tionai
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qa t13 77 1%

t.-D i11 111::! 81 6a

i'E 153 99 4% $7 5%

t6%

, IEYTLS (2024 natiouai

{umb€r ef 51uden15 29

',lumber.l ?trSies 29

{P! per rtudenr iinc aPOl 27 67

l.coparienai Spec jlais! Grade Pass+

-)isrinatior i:) I t.[ 15.7%

:|is! tderit 1! 14 5% 65.3%

l,ist Pns$ 29 1i0 il% 31 J%

u 0

We aiways say ihai lire ryreasi";ra ci : scncci is ti:e desi:ns:icl cl the sludenis wiel :hey ieave ;s ;'r* dre
Cei:ghied to reocrl that tne 7": sli-.:der::s wlro ,,vanle* ic 3itend ur-:iversiiy i* sti.ldy- a iegree are dc,rg lo. y;:th
*ne stude nt le;ectrng Univ*r:tl_v- ta sia{ a Cegree apprenttcesh:* lr en!!neenng
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025
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Key performance indicators Key Stage 4

It is important ao note that this Year 11 cohori were impacted by covid in Year 6, which meant they had no

SATs exams and their Year 7 was spent in 'bubbles'. When they first arrived in Year 7 we conducted MIDYIS

baseline iesting, in line with other year groups. The cohort had more than 60% of pupils in the bottom half of
the national avbrage, and 35% in the bottom quartile. Consequently, we were expecting a drop in headline

measures. However, despite the coho('s starting point being significantly below the national average, we have

managed to make sufficient progress for the headline figures to be above the national averages in all areas.

Tabte showing the 2024 nationa! averages {and 2a25 where available) compared wifh Saracens High Schoot
suiccffie$

Sarace ns
High School

2A?5

National
Average

2025

English and Maths 9-7

Enqlish rnd Maths 9-5 .19!n 4A!.;

Enqlish and Maths 9-4 7|Ya i0t c

Enqlish g-7 2C!,; 20 22;

Enqlish g-5 Egln 57 g'r'

Enqlish gd eSin 70.6%

Maths 9-7 23n;

Maths 9-5 57',.1 ,10.3ut

Uaths g-.1 73% 71 gr..i

\ttaif,ment I 46 (tbc)

'rogtess 8
0.3 (FFr)

0.01 (stsRA) Fl;A

3rade 4t all subjects 7C.6% 67.1%
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUEDI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

We are proud to once again have achieved exceptional outcomes for our pupii premium children, who achieved
on average a full grade above the national data in each of their 8 best sublects.

Table shawing the Saracens High Schoal Pupil Premium outcomes compared with the 2024 national
for PP

Pupil Premium Saracens
High School

2025

National
AYerage

2024

lish and Maths 9.7 6%

;nolish and Maths 9.5 39?i ?9o./t

:nqlish and Maths 9{ Otr-. 48oio

nqlish s-7 143/o

lish 9-5 65':r 41qo

Enqlish 94 8006 56o1c

Maths 9-7

Maths 9-5 516/a 3Qo/a

Maths 94 500,'o

Attainment I
Proqress 8 0.51 {Sisra) -0.57

" noi PP 20:J n;ronal P8 fi. I 7

Frscher Family Trtsst reported Attai{.}rnent and P;'*g{ess data

EEI4 11 RsluitsS€ryrceSummerTqrm,24'251

5ffi:::e ffio:1r, rdlin@,

@6 aAId FrillMATIi / '
frbr@ i w&oly ror",,r, t ..

4,! a.6

12 4,9

1,' 1,5

a.9 a 4"<

1A 4!
rl0 a
oJl 3
c.35 a
06c
.0.6

Fischer Family Trust compa.isons with the 2024 data show that our results were signirican:ly above average
in Attainment S for EBacc and in four of the five progress g measures.

ln 2024-25, Saracens Bell Lane's first year in the Trust, the number of EAL pupils was e5% compared to a
Local Authority average of 43o/o and Pupil Premium eligibility was 24o/o compared lo l4o/o.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Key performance indicators Early Years Foundation Stage

74.4o/o of children achieved a good level of development compared to the 71 .4o/o Barnel Averaqe:

tacal Authority - Barner

I Goad le':el of de.reloprnent = Jt l**st expected rn all prirn*, kterary and maihemattcs goals.

- = value sls$ressed. neglrgibie or *navallable

Item

Good Lrvrl of nry€lopmcfit I
Average ns. fl6r at rxprstrd

All 6oalr, Exp+

Prlme Gorls. €xgr

Ccm. & Lang. Goals, Exp+ 1r

PtE Goalr. Exp+ ;
Phys. Dev. Goals, Exp+ I

Speeitic 6oal*. Exp+

Lit€.i€y 6oal=, Exp+ I

Matlrs 6oals, Exp+ ;
Und. ?he World Goals, Exp+

Exp. Arts & Des. 6oals, Exp+

Valur

?4"{t}

r3-8

?Lr*

?9-rqi

75-1%

8t_?1r

86.m6

7t.4q[

79.rt6

79.19t

75.79r

7€.?Yr

Value

7!.4t6

t4.4

m.6!6

't6.*

81.4.A

83.996

$6.3'rt

72.2*

73.9}6

80.7%

82.1%

86.8!s

6aP

':

Srrarcfis Bcll lanc
(2G6!

58.8% of Pupil Premium children achieved a good level of development compared to 52.2% Local Authority
average and compared to 50% in 23124.

74.3oh al -AL pupils achieved a good level of development compared lo 52.2o/o Local Authority average and
compared to 69.4% in 23 124.

Going Concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the abilily of the company to
continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year
from the date of authorisation of the financial statements. Trustees have concluded that SMAT has adequate
resources to coniinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties
about the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis
can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES RIPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Promoting the Success of the Company

The Trust is proud of the sirong reputalion that Saracens High School has built in the local area as
demonstrated by high application levels and waiting lists for places.

The improvement of academic outcomes at Saracens Bell Lane is also noteworthy in ils first year rn the Trust.

Furlhermore, Broadfields Academy Trust has decided to join Saracens Mulii Academy Trust from October
2025, taking the number of schools in the trust to three.

Strategic Report - Financial Review

Finance Review

The vasl majority of the Trust's rncoming resources are obtained from ihe Department for Education (DfE) in

the form of recurrent grants restricled to specific educational purposes. The Trusl conlinued to receive set up
resource funding as a new school. growing a year at a time Saracens High School serves a catchment area
where 57% of pupils are in receipt of Pupil Premium funding and this funding has enabled greater resources
to be spenl on educational support staff and materials, to support pupil interventions. Saracens Bell Lane
seryes a catchment area where 40% of pupils are in receipt of Pupil Premium funding.

ln addition, the High School used the remaining I3K of the Specialist Equipment grant to purchase key
resources lor our Business T Levels, including furniture and books. l13K of revenue has been transferred to
capilal in year to pay for improvements for the new sixth form caf6 as well as additional seating areas for the
atrium.

At Saracens Bell Lane two donatjons were received from the Priory Foundation. f38K for a set of Chromebooks
and a trolley for each year group and a further t22Rfar iPads and elecironic classroom screens for the Early
Years, a new sensory room. PE kil for sports teams and playground equipment. f 16K revenue funding was
used forlhe repiacement of old radiators and a new seryer. 111K of Devoived Formula Capital funding was
used to fund a new CCTV svsiem.

Reserves Policy

The definition of reserves in the SORP is that part of a charity s income funds that is freely avaiiable for rts
general purposes'. This definitjon of reserves therefore ncrmally excludes.
. permanent endowment funds
. expendable endcwment funds
. restricied income funds
o an! part of unrestricted funds not readily arrailable for spending, specifically income funds whtch could only

be realised by disposing of fixed assels heid for charitabie use,

Reserves are lherefore the resources the Trust has or can make available to spend lor any or all of the
Academies' purposes once it has met its comrnitrnents and covered its other planned expendtture. More
specifically 'reserves' are income which becomes available to ihe Trust and is lo be spent at the Trustees'
dtscretion in furtherance of any of the Academies' objects {sometimes referred to as 'general purpose' income)
but which is not yet spent. committed or designated (i.e. is 'free').

The levei of reserves heid takes inlo account ihe nature of income and expenditure streams, the need lo malch
them with commitments. including future capttal projecls, and the nature of reserves. The Truslees wlll keep
this level of reserves under review at each board meeting and aim io build and maintatn lhe reserves level by
entering into cost effective agreements whilst in keeping with the principal object of the Academies.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

SMAT believe that use of reserves for improving the education of current puprls should be balanced aga'nst
holding reserves for future priorrties. Our lundamental principle is that resources srould be shared fairly across
all schools within the Trust. Reserves are pooled across the Trust and our pcllicy is that rese!-ves will be
deployed to:
. address emergency health arrd safety and/or safeguarding risks in schocls
. fund lhe straiegrc objectives of the Trust
. fund cap lal improvements that cannoi be met by specific grants
. fund specific school improvement projects.

On joining SN/Af , we would consider enabling a schoolltrust to ringfence some reserves where thev are
required for the followrng
r To address urgent safeguarding and heajth and safety rssues at the time of joining
. Any other urgent requirements deiermined by due diligence
o Any specific project or programme the schoolltrust can evidence that they had accurnulaaes reserves for

lhere was a pianned increase in revenue reserves in previous years lo contribute 10 devei,rping lhe Figh
School sixth form currrculunr offer and providing a suiiable. larger. learning and social environmeni for sixth
form sludents. Srnce 2021 the school has been taking 180 (or more) into Year 7 ccmpared io the 155 we were
resiricted lo in our temporary accomrnodation.ln 2024125 there has been a planned reductio,r in the overall
cumulative reserves positron to pay for a temporary sixth form T Level Centre corrsisting of srx classrooms

The decrease in restricted fevenue funds for 2024125 was t376K. The total res:ricted income reserves held
by the Trust at 31 Augusl 2025 are L747k, a pension asset of f 1 354k and lotal Lrnrestricted reserves l6B9K

The amcunt of designatrons made in relaiion to lhe restrrcted (or unrestricted) reserves totais to !208K. relattrg
lo ihe following capitai prolects:
. h 2A25126 the Trust plans to replace the Hrgh Schor:l IT server (pan funded from reserves i25K)
. h 2a25126 there is significant work needed at Saracens Bell Lane. tc rectify a water leak, conlrrbute lo CIF

bids and address longstanding tssues wiih ieaking roofs. totalling f 161K
t ln 2028t27 the Trust pians to soend l22K to make improvements at the High lichooi olaying lieids

The Trust arms to matntain a ievel o{ L.rseable free' reserves sufftcrent to covefl
. unexpecled and unplanned events so lhat the schocls primary oblectjves are preserved
. the payment of staff for one month :n the event of unforeseen circumstances

' ensulng the Trust is a gorng Concern as required by the Academy lrus: Handbook.

Foilowing the planned use of ;'eserves, rn the ionger terr-n. the Trust aims to cperaie a level cf Jree reserves cf
at leasi 5% of toial income. The reason ior lhis reserve ;s io provide sufficient worktng capiial and to ,rovide a

ctrs-,cn to oeai ,,r'rt^ L,^expected e're.genc es

Vt/ithin the reserves poircy users snouid note that the pension surpius lhis year ,]f t'1 .354k i2024r surplus ol f 172kj

relating lo the Local Governrnenl Pensron Scheme iLGPS)has not been rellected rn the financral sialements of the

trust as lt does nol c.eate an tmmeciately reaiisable asse{ thal can be reieased stralgnl away and used cy the Tr'ust.

lnvestment Policy

The Trusis cash positicn remarns strcng The lnvestment policy is determine.l by the Trusi Board. Wiere
there are anticipated cash balances in excess of f 100k ai each monih end for the ioliowing quarter, funds rnay

be invested wtth banking institutrons lhat are regulated by the FCA and wtth a ;-ating of at ieast A-. Investments
are authorised by the CEO or specified members of the Audit and Risk Committee Takrng advantage cf high

interest rates, we currently have a rumber cf deposits in si;ch accounts with inverstment periods ranging lrom
easy access lo srx months. As at 3f iAugust 2025 e250 C00 rnvesimenis were heid.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company Iimited bY guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Companies Act 2006 s4 17(3b) requires disclosure of the prlncipai isks and uncertainties facing a
company. The Trust rs exposed to a number of financial risks rncluding credit, cash flow and liquidity rlsks.
Given the Trust's exposure to finanoal instruments being limited, the exposure principally relates to bank
balances, cash and trade creditors, with limited trade (and other) debtors. The Ttust's system of inlernal
controls ensures risk is minimal in these areas.

A comprehensive risk register has been established and is updated regularly and reviewed often by the Board.
Where appropriate, systems or procedures have been established to mitigate the risks the Trust faces. lnternai
control risks are minimised by the implementation of procedures for authorisation of all transactjons and
projects.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed. in particular those relating 1o the
specific teaching, provisron of facilities and other operalronal areas of the Trust, and its finances. The Trustees
have implemented a number of syslems to assess risKs thal the Academies face, especially in the operational
areas (e.9. rn relation to leaching. health and safety, builying and school trips) and in relation to the control of
finance. They have introduced systems, including operational procedures (e.9. vetting of newstaffand visitors,
supervision of school grounds) and iniernal financial controls isee below) in order to minimise risk. Where
significant financial risk still remains, they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover.

The Trust has an effectrve system of internal financial controls, and this is explalned in more detail in the
Governance Statement.

It should aiso be noted ihat procedures are in place to ensure compliance with the heallh and safety
regulations. pertaining to both siaff and pupiis. Trustees are also fully aware of their responsibilities to ensure
that the Trusi's estate is safe, well marntained and compliant with the relevant regulations.

Tle lt":si *cai* r*vt=x; t:i**r secu.::y as: slardrrg :l*r: unCer in* Au,iti & f?;sk C*nrillee. ensurirq lhat
:crit*;5 :i;gn w::n aIe Df='s Digita, ar':C ;*clnc:*ry Sla**a:"*s. l;1je tave :n':oterre rleC tlui1;-lac;*r
Alriienilcaliott ilJfAi acr:ss siaif a.d ltvernancc arcc*nts ard -1a:nlair rl:it.lterre *ifi:ne *a:rups lc ansilra
Iaia l*ccver',7 :r ihe:ver':i lf ai": i:'':c:Ce;:i. A:: siafi recervg llatdaltrr. ;rtua: cvilar $etili:.ly 1;311;r; ald
*a*:r:iraie ;l +*ga-t lnisi;:rg ::m*l*i:cns ic l*s:*r a ;r*act:ve i*crj':ty aL ir:: 3r::-ss cLl -ncdJ*.:res

f undraising

ln ihe developmeni of the Trust the charity sought dcnations from known suppofiers of Saracens Rugby Club
and registered ihe charity for gift aid. There were no public appeals for donations and no prcfessional
iundralsers were empioyed.

ln 2024125 a fundraising working group comprised of lrustees and staff members has been established which
has applred for grants and sought donations from private sector sources.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

See Appendix 1.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES REPORT (CONTINUED}

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2325

Plans for Future Periods

Saracens High School is looking forward to the development of iis playing fields in 2025126 to include
conversion of an old nursery building into changing and storage facilities. These new faciliiies will enhance
lettings income for the Trust, funding fund enrichment activities for pupils as well as providing many
opportunities for community use.

Broadfields primary school will join the Trust with effect from October 2025. Broadfields is a 3-form primary
school with two SEN provisions and a nursery with places for babies from 1 year old.

The Trust continues working towards ihe opening of a free school primary school with an agreed opening date
of September 2027 , close to Colindale underground station. The primary school will be two forms of entry and
have a nursery.

The ambition of the Trust is to grow locally to 8 to 10 schools in 5 - 10 years with a balance of secondary and
primary (all secular). The Trust intends that all these schools are within Barnet, although consideration would
be given to working just beyond the borough's borders. The Trust would sponsor both maintained and
academy schools. We believe that our expertise lies in our understanding of the complex mulii-cultural
communities of West Barnet and that we have the confidence of those communities to deliver first class
educationfromage2tol9. Weknowthatafocusonbehaviourandattendanceandbuildinghighaspiration
is central to success.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

The Academy Trust and / or its trustees did nol act as custodian trustee during the current or previous period.

Auditor

lnsofar as the trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware

. the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make thenrselves aware of any relevant

audit information and to establish ihat the auditor is aware of that information.

The irustees' repofi, incorporating a straiegic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the company

directors. on and signed on the board's behalf by:
tut2l2o2s

k ,' taftq

Kevin Perry

Chair of Trustees
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Saracens Mult! Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and othenrruise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather ihan eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and noi
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Academy Trust Governance Guide.

The board of trustees has delegated the dayto-day responsibilityto the chief executive, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to il in the funding agreemeni between Saracens
Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board
of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 8 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings
attended

Out of a
Possible

Kate Aicock, CEO and Accounting Officer

Gordon Banks 6 I
Alan Evans, Vice Chair 5 o

Alison Davis 2 2

Alan Gray b A

Mark Hodges 6 B

Gillian Jackson 6

Louise Jacobs 6

Janet Jones 5 5

Lucy Maislish o B

Lee Manning 6 8

lan Marcus 7 B

Vicky Pearson 4 tr

Kevin Perry 8 8

Mitesh Velani 1 4

Meetings were held in person during the 202+25 financial year but Trustees also have the option of joining
remotely, in order to maximise attendance.

During the year, 2 trustees resigned from the Board and 3 were appointed, largely from primary educational
backgrounds, supporting the growth of lhe trust. One new trustee has significant cyber security expertise.

An external review of governance was undertaken in December 2024 to establish the extent to
which the trust board is effective and provides strategic leadership for the trust, ensures
appropriate accountability and assurance take place and if the board engages strategically with
internal and external stakeholders. The review concluded that governance is effective. Some suggestions were
implemented to further strengthen the efficiency of governance structures, in particular, a revision of the terms of
reference, an update of the non-financial scheme of delegation, further delegation of policy reviews and the
establishment of a Pay Committee.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR :NDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Trustees complete a Register of lnterest annually and update this if therr crrr:uimstances change. Board
members are also asked if they have any conflicts of interest at the start of every ilreeting and would wiihdraw
from the meeting shauld a conflict arise. No connecied parties have any cont'ol over the way the school
ope.ates.

The Board beiieves rt is rn a strong position and that it is operating effectively, rn line with the requirements of
the Academy Trust Handbook. funding agreemenls and ihe Artjcles of Association.

A Commtttee of the Trust during rhe accounting period was the Audit and Rrsk Comrnrttee. The Committee s
purpose was to ensure the adequacy of financial systems of control and audi': within the Trust and each
academy and to oversee the appointment and instruction of the nternal and external auditors.

Membership oi the Audit and Risk Committee was as follows:

Audit and Risk Committee
Trustee Meetings

attended
Out of a
Possible

Lee l\lanninq 3 J

i\,lark Hodqes a 3

Gillian Jackson 1 J

Peter Harvev (co-opted from the SHS Local Governinq Body) 3 3

Andrew Harris (co-opted from ihe SBL Local Governing Body) 3 aJ

lan Marcus Z J

tv'litesh Velani 0 1

{b) Nominations Committee
A Nominations Committee was established this year, who oversees the successton planning and recruitment
of Truslees and ensures that gcvernance remains strong acloss the Trust.

Trustee Meetings
attended

Out of a
possible

Kate Aicock z 2

Alan Gray 0 2

Louise Jacobs 2

lan Marcus 2 Z

Review of Value for Money

As Accounttng Officer, the CEC has responsibility for ensurrng thai ihe Academy -l-rusi delivers good vaiue rn

the use of puOlic resources. The Accounting Officer understands thal vaiue for money refers io :he educatlcnal

and wider societal outcomes, as well as estales safety and management, achier,ed ln return f3r ihe taxpayer

resources received.

The Acccuniing Of{icer constders how the Academy Trust's use of iis resources has provlded good value for

money during each academlc year. and reports to the Trusl Board where value for.noney car be irproved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust nas

deiivered rmproved vaiue {cr money during the year by ensurtng that goods antj services used ln operallng
Saracens High School and Saracens Bell Lane were procured in accordance with tnternal financial regulations
and subject to strict tendering procedures, using consuitants ;n specialist areas]. as necessary. Framework

agreements were used where posstbie and discounls obtained wherever these could be negotiated.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The Purpose of the System of lnternal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policy aims and objectives. lt can, lherefore, only provide reasonabie and not absolute
assurance of effectrveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise lhe risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives. to evaluaie the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised. and io manage them efficiently.
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Saracens Multi Academy Trust
for the period 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual repofi and financiai
statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together
w;th the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to miligaie those risks The
Audit and Risk Committee rs of the view that there is a formal on-going process for rdentifying, evaluating and
managing the Academy Trust's significart risks that has been in place lor the period 1 September 2024 lo 31
August 2025 and up to the date of approval of the annual reporl and financial statements. This process is
regularly reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee. and the Trust Board.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financiai control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. ln particular, it inciudes:

. complehensive budgeting and monitoring systems w;th an annual budget and monthly managemeni
accounts which are reviewed by the Trust Board (at least 6 times per year)

. regular re,:tews by the LGBs of leports which indicate financial performance against lhe forecasts and of
major purchase plans and capital works programmes

. settjng iargets to measure financial and olher performance

. clearly defined purchasing, assei purchase and tnvestment guidelines

. delegation of authority and segregalion of dulres

. identiJicalion and managemeni of risks through a comprehensive nsk i-egisler; and

. revrews by internal audit of the operation of controls in key acccunting syslems and reporting of outcomes
to the Audil and Risk Comrnittee.

The Trust Board again boughi in an rnternal scruriny ser,ztce, from Keystone Knowledge Ltcl, for the ZA24-25
financiai year. The team rs led by individuals who have rnany years of experrence working rn schooi business
leadership. The scooe of work of Keystone included, in the course oi two visits. spt'ead across the linancial
year, testing of:

r Payroll and exoenses
r Cyber security

On a lermly basls, lhe auditor's reporis are shared with the board of truslees. through the audil and lsk committee
on the operation oi the systems of control and on lhe discharge ol the board of trustees' ljnancial .esponsib,lities.
The auditor prepares an annual summary repod to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key lindtngs.
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider aclions and assess year on yea. progress.

Theagreedscheduleofworkhasbeendeliveredaspianned. Nomaterial control issueswereidentifiedasaresult
ol the work undertaken.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEM\T TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

GOVERNANCE 5TATEMENT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Review of Effectiveness

As accounting officer, ihe chief executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the internal auditor

. the work of the external auditor
o the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management

self-assessment checklist
. the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development

and maintenance of the internal conirol framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the audit and risk committee and a plan ensure conlinuous improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees is of the

opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk management and

control.

Approved byorderof the members of the board of lrustees on 7L11212025 and signed on its behalf by:

ki itawy

Kevin Perry

Chair of Trustees

A*^* ,\,A'

Catherine Alcock

,Accounting Officer
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A companY limited bY guarantee)

GOV:RNANCE STATEMENT {CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Appendix 't - Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The Trust reports the following greenhouse Eas emissions and energy usage.

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 Sept 2024-
31 Auq 2025

Enerqv consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 1076036

Energy consumption break down (kWh) (optional):

'gas
. electricity

oJ/ / td
41 831 8

Scope 1 - emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption
Owned transport - mini-busses
Total scooe 1

120.34

120.34
Scope 2 - emissions in metric-tg!_nCg1QQeg
Purchased electricitv 74.04
Scooe 3 - emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles
Total oross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e 194.38
lntensity ratio
Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.13

Qualification and Reportinq Methodoloov

We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG
Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard and have used the 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting.

Intensitv Measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is tota! gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the recommended
ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve enerqy efficiencv

The London Borough of Barnet have installed heat pumps at Bell Lane primary school before it joined the Trust.

Smart meiers are in use at Saracens High School. Both schools have some solar panels.

Saracens High School has 12 electric vehicle charging points.

The Trust use Zoom for meetings, as appropriate, to reduce the need for travel beiween sites.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accounting Officer of Saracens Multi Academy Trust I have considered my rr:sponsibility to noiify the Board
of Trustees and the Department for Education (DfE) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
lerms and conditions cf all funding .including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreernent
in place between lhe Trusi and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of nry considerat;on I have had due
regard tc the requirements oi the Academy Trust Handbook 2024, including responsibilities for estates safety
and management.

I confirm that I and the Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular cr improper use of all funcis

by the trust, or material non-compliance with the lerms and conditions of fun,Jing under ihe Trust's funding
agreenrent and the Academy Trust Handbook2024.

I confirm that no instances of malerial irregularity, impropriety or iunding non-cornpliance have been discovererd

to date. lf any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these'rvill be notified to {he Boarcl cf
Trustees and DfE.

{*-* )*L
Catherine Alcock
Accounting Officer
Dut*, tt1t21zaz5
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Department for Education, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial . Under company law, the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. ln preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2A24 b 2025,

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
r prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from DfE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's webslte. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparalion and
dissemination of financial slatements may differ from legislation in other judsdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 7U1212025 and signed on its behalf by:

k ! perrg

Kevin Perry
Chair of Trustees
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE F!NANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Saracens Multi Academy Trust (the 'Trust') for the year ended 31

August 2025 which comprlse the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash
flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standar<Js
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102'The
Financial Repoding Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2024 lo 2025 issued by the Department for Education.

ln our opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 3'1 August 2025 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended,

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

r have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 to 2025 issued by the Department for Education.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternational Standards on AuditinS (UK) (lSAs (UK)) and applicable
law, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financiai statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is suflicient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

ln auditing lhe financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to contlnue as a going

concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST (CONTINUED)

Other information

The other information comprises the lnformation included in the Annual report other than the financial statements
and our Auditors' report thereon. The Truslees are responsible for the other information contained within the
Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other lnformation and, except to the
exlent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the flnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. li we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing lo report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

ln our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

r the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared ls consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on whlch lye are required to report by exception

ln the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Trust and its environment obtained in the course ol the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the foilowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received fron-i branches not visited by us, or

r the financial sta{ements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. or
. certain dtsclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made: or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for ihe preparation of the financiai stalements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. and for such internal control as the Truslees determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of flnancial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Trusl's ability to continue as
a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis ol
accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations. or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SARACENS MULTr ACADEMY TRUST (CONTTNUED)

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our oblectives are to obtarn reasonable assurance about whether the frnancral statements as a whole are "ree
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with lSAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably' be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial stalements.

lrregularities. including fraud. are insiances of non-cornpliance with laws and regulalions. We design procedLrrr:s
in line with our responsibilities. ,rutlined above, to detect material misstateme,nts in respect of irregularilie,s.
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities. including frau,l is

detailed below:

\l/e considered the nature of the industry and its control environment. and reviewed the acaderry's
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliancer with iaws and regulations. \lle
also enquired of management about their own identificatlon and assessment ol tt'e risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding cf the legal and regulatory framework that tl-e academy's operates in, and
identilied the key laws and regulalions that:

. had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures tn the financial statemenl:s.

These included the UK Conrpanies Act and tax legislation: and
. do not have a direct effecl on the financial statements but compiiance with which may be fundamenlal to the

charitable company's ability to operate or io avoid a material penalty.

' We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opporlunitiers and incentives that may erxist

within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financiai statements.

ln ccmmon with all audits under lSAs {UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures tc responC lo
the risk cf management overrjde ln addressing the risk of lraud through mana(lerrient override cf controls. lve

tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments, assessed w'hether lhe judgernents maCe in

making accounting estimates are rndicatirre of a poiential bias: and evalualecl the business rationale of any
significanl transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course oi business.

ln addition to the above. our prccedures to respond to the risks identified includecl the following.

. revtewing financial statement disciosures by testing to supporting documenti:tion to assess cornpliance ,,vith

provisions of relevanl laws and reguiatrons described as having a direct effect on the finar:cial statements:
r performing analy,tical procedures tc identify any unusual or unexpected relaiionshtps that may tndicate risks

cl material misslatement due to fraud:
. enqu!r!ng of management. anti external legal counsel concerning actual anl potenttal iiligation and clairrts,

and inslances cf non-compliance with laws and regulaiions: and

. reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

A further description of our responsibrlitjes for the audit of the financiai stalements is localed on the Financiai

Reportrng Councrl's website at: www.frc.orq.uklauditorsresponsibilities. This description lorms part of c,ur

Auditors' repcrt.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
SARACENS MULTT ACADEMY TRUST {CONTINUED)

Use of our reporl

This report is made solely to the Trust Members. as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Trust Members those
matters we are required to state io them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Trust and its Members, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or ior the opinions we have formed"

Jtukl- Ltu,"

Jake Lew {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of

BKL Audit LLP

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

35 Ballards Lane
London
N3 1XW

Date: t4lt2laA25
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO SARACENS
MULTIACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

ln accordance with the terms cf our engagement letter dated 4 December 2023 ard further to the requiremenls
of the Department for Education iDfE) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 la 2025, we hav'e

carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenCilure disb,:rsed and incon'e
received by Saracens lvlulti Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2024 to 31 August 2025 have bee,n

applied to the purposes identified bv Parliament and the financial transactions c,:n{orm to the authorities whtc:h

govern them.

This report is made solely lo Saracens Multi Academy Trust and DfE tn accr:rdance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Saracens Multi Academy Trust arrd

DfE those malters we are required to state in a report and for nr: other purpose. To the fullest exient permitted by

law we do not accept or assume respcnsibility to anyone cther than Saracens I\,1r.ri1i Academy Trust and DfE. fr:r
our work. for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Saracens Multi Academy Trust's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsibie, under the requirements of Saracens l;1ulti Academy Trust's funCing

agreement with the Secretary of State for Education daled 25 May 2012 and lhe Academy Trust Handbcok,

extant from 1 September 2024, lor ensuring that expenditure disbursed and inc,:me received ts applied for lhe
purposes inlended by Parliament and the linancral transactions conform to the auihorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagernent are established in the United Kingdt:rn by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagenlent letter and the

requirements of the Academies Accor-ints Direction 2024to 2025 We repert to 1'ou whether any'thing has ccme

to our altention in carrying out ouf work which suggests that in all material respects, expendit,ure disbursed ilr-td

income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 3'1 Augusl 2025 ha're not been applied to puriloses

intendeci by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

lrie conducted cur engagement in acccrdance with the Framework and Gr-iiCe lor lxternai Auditors ;and

Reporting Accountant of Academy Ti'usts issued by DfE. We performed a irmlted assurance engagernenl as

Cefined rn cur engagement ietter.

The oblectlve of a lir.-rited assllrance engagement rs to perform such pi-ocedures as to cbtain information and

explanitions in order to provide us wlth sufficient appropriate evidence io express a negative conclusion on

regularity

A lirriled aSSUranCe engagernenl ts !-..rore limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and

ccnsequently dces not enable us to cblarn assurance that we ,,vould becorne alvare cf all signlficant matlers lhat

might be ideniified in a reasonable assurance engagement. AccorCingly. we do nt:t express a lositive opinion

Our engagement inciuCes examrnalion. on a lest basis, cl eviderce relevant to the regularity and propriety cf tlre

Trust's income and exPenditure.

The work undertaken to draw 1o cur conclusion includes:

a

a

a

review of managemenl leporting documents,

review of TrusteesiGovernors meeting minutes:

consideration of wheiher any pe.sonal benefit has been Cerrved from the Academy Trust's iransactions by

stail or related Parties,
consideration of the Academies Trust Handbook regularity requirements and related documents, and

review ol internal controls.
I

a
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANGE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO SARACENS
MULTr ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATTON & SKTLLS FUNDTNG AGENCY (CONTTNUED)

Conclusion

ln the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2024 to 3.1 August 2025 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

BKL hudlt LLP

Reporting Accountant

BKL Audit LLP

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

35 Ballards Lane
London
N3 1XW

Date: 1411212025
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SARACENS MULT] ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACT|VIT|ES (INCORPORATING TNCOME AND EXPENDTTURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

lncome from:
Donations and capital
grants

Other trading activities

lnvestments

Charitable actlvities

Total income

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities

Total expenditure

Net
income/(expenditure)

Transfers between
funds

Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses)

Other recognised
gains/(losses):

Actuaria I (losses)/gains
on defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in
funds

Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought
fontvard

Net movement in funds

Total funds carried
forward

Unrestricted
funds
202s

Note f

3
(
6

4

224,167

48,728

278,028

Restricted
funds

2025
t

29,047

18,636

14,000

14,294,678

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2025

e

87,693

Total
funds

2025
€

116,740

242,903

62,728

14,572,706

Total
funds
2024

fl

3,144,714

s92,084

63,496

9,714,615

550,923 14,356,361 87,693 14,994,977 13 514.905

225,410 14,508,423 849,312 1s,s83,'145 10.936,383

225,410 't4,508,423 849,3'! 2 15,583,145'10.936,383

325,513

19

(152,062)

(5,004)

(761,619)

5,004

(588,168) 2.578,522

325,513 (157,066) (7s6,615) (588,168) 2,578,522

(219,000) (219,000) 181,000

325,513 (376,066)

363,456 1,123,316

325,513 (376,066)

(756,51s) (807,168) 2,759,5',2i1

31,213,916

(7s6,615)

32,700,688 29,941,166

(807,168) 2.7s9.522

688,969 747,250 30,457,301 31,893,520
:::

The Statement oJ financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 29 lo 57 form part of these financial statements.

32,700,68u
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)
REGISTERED NUMBER: 10646649

BALANCE SHEET
A$ AT 31 AUGUST 2025

Note

1,243

553,473

250,000

1,621,061

2,425,777

(989,558)

30,457,301

747,25_0

2025
E

30,457,301

1,436,219

31,893,s20

31,893,520

31,893,520

31,204,551

688,969

1,440

1 118,103

500.000

1 ,359,519

2,979,462

(1.492,290',)

31,213.916

1,123,316

2024
T

31 ,213,916

1,486,772

32,700,688

32,700,688

32,700,688

32,337.232

JtlJ.43b

Fixed assets

Tangible assets

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors

lnvestments

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds

Restricted income funds

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

14

16

tl

18

to

19

19

19

1g

The financial statements on pages 26 to 57 were

7u72l2A2s

Kevia Perry kj ferr!
Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 29 1o 57 form part of these financiai statements.

31,893,520 32,700,688

approved by the Trustees. and authorised for issue on
and are signed on their behalf, by:
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2A25

2024
t

2025
€

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year

Cash and cash equi',ralents at the begtnning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 29 to 57 form part of these financial statements

Note

21 i20,34s)

22 281,887

261,542

1 ,359,519

(2,814,s7s)

2,911,541

97,1 66

1,262,353

23. 2,t 1 ,621 ,061 1 ,359 51 9
::
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1.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities;
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 lo 2025 issued by DfE, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

1.2 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period
of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

1.3 !ncome

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

. Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is defered
and included in creditors as deferred incorne until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognlsed as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in iull when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt !s probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Trust has provided the goods or services.
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1.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUS-| 2025

Accounting policies (continued)

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single actlvity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciaticln
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the Trust's educational operations, inciuding support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

lnterest receivable

lnterest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measureld
reliably by the Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the instituticln
with whom the funds are deposited.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing t2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried foruvard in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial
activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over jts

expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold Land - 125 years
Long-term leasehold property - 20/o per annum (buildings only) on cost
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 25o/o per annum on cost
Computer equipment - 33.3% per annum on cost
Building improvements - 15 years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. lmpairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

1.4

1.5

1.6
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1.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A eompany limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Accounting policies (continued)

1.7 Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

1.8 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

'1.9 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account^

1.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Trust
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

1.'t 1 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees' working lives with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroli. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs
and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are
included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liabilitylasset is also
recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value
of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations, The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return
on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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1.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Accounting policies (continued)

1.12 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable ob.lects of the Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific caprtal purpc,ses
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by tlre
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under tre
circumstances"

Critlcal accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resultrng accounting estimiltes
and assumptions will, by definition. seldom equal the related actuetl results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends c,n a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using ia variety of assumptions. The

assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any

changes in these assumpt,ons. which are disclosed in note 26, will impract the carrl;ing amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuiarial

valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31

August 2025. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a f'ull

actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liatrility.

lncome from donations and capital grants

Donations

Capital Grants

Restricted
funds

2425
f

29,447

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2025

E

49,504

38,189

Total
funds

2025
E

78,55{

38,189

116,740

3.

20 nn-7 87.693
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3.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

lncome from donations and capital grants (continued)

Restricted
funds
2A24

t
25,178

(361,000)

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2024

I
25,044

73,859

3,381,629

Total
funds
2024

f
54,222

73,859

3,020,629

Donations

CapitalGrants

Grants

Funding for the Trust's charitable activities

DfE/ESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)

Other DfEIESFA grants

Core school budget grant

16-19 core funding

Pupil premium

Teachers pension grani

Jeachers pay grant

Others

Other Government grants
Local authority grants

Other government grants

Other income from the Trust's educational activities

(335,822) 3,480,s32 3,144,710

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds
2025 2425

€E

9,450,701

352,428

1,632.676

728,728

31 1,285

tb4./bv
429,023

Total
funds

2425
€

9,450,701

352,428

1,632,676

728,728

311,285

164,769

429,023

13,069,610 13,069,610

806,560 806,560

418,508 418,508

- 1,225,468 1,225,068
278,028 - 278,028

278,028 14,294,678 14,572,7A6
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Funding for the Trust's charitable activities (continued)

DfEiESFA grants

General annual grant (GAG)

Other DfEIESFA grants

Pupil premium

16-1 9 Core Funding

Teachers pension grant

Teachers pay grant

Mainstream school additional grant

Others

Other Government grants

Local authority grants

Other government grants

Other income from the Trust's educational activities

lncome from other trading activities

Hiring income

Catering income

Other income

9103,844 9,103.844

265,845 265.84t'

135 338 135.338

- 401.183 401 183
207,59ri 1,993 209,5i38

207,595 9,5A7,O20 9,714,615

Unrestricterl
fu n d,s

202,+
t

Restricted
funds
2424

t

6917662

518 661

870.402

120.312

131 ,849

243,718

301.240

Total
funds
24.2,1

IJ

6 9'17 6621

3 d.ob I

870.40it

124,3:2).

131 84!)

2Ao, 7 1F\

301.2,+C)

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds
2A25 2025€s

1?O q4rl

16.12\)

78.48\) 18,636

Totar!
funds

2025
IE

129,549

16,',t21'

97,125

224,167 18,636 242,803
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5.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

lncome from other trading activities (continued)

Unrestricted
funds
2424

e

102,132

M,A02

211,434

Restricted
funds
2024

t-

264,516

Total
funds
2024

t

102,132

14,002

475,950

327,568 264,516 592,084

Hiring income

Catering income

Other income

lnvestment income

Bank interest

Pension income

Bank interest

Pension income

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds
2025 2025€e

48,728
'14,000

Total
funds

2025
E

48,728

14,000

48.728 14,000 62,728

Unrestricted
funds
2024

t

48,496

Restricted
funds
2024

t

15.000

48,496

15,000

Total
funds
2A24

t

48,496 15,000 63,496
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3,I AUGUST 2025

7. Expenditure

Educational Activities:

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Educational Activities:

Direct costs

Allocated support costs

Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educational Activities

Staff Costs
2025

t

9,836,184

1,972,538

Premises
2025

€

bbb. ry/

Other
2025

E

Total
202!i

fi

802,647 10,638,831

2,305,579 4,944,3',14.

11,808,722 666,197 3,'108,226 15,583,145i

Staff Costs
2024

t

6,256,061

1 ,595.186

Premises
202.+

,l

449,25it"

Tottal
20:,2tt

fl

718.630 6,974 691

1 ,917.254 3.961 692

Other
2024

t

7 .851 ,247 449,25i','_

::-
2,635,884 10,936,383

Activities
undertaken

directly
2025

f

,a,aat,*

Support
costs
2025

€

Total
funds;

2025
f,

4,944,314 15,583,144i

Activitiers
undertakerr

directly
202,+

li

Support
costs
lU Z1+

t

Total
fun d:;
20',2t1

{:

6,974,69'1 3,961,692 10,936,383Educational Activities
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TR.UST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

8. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs

Educational supplies

Agency staff

Examination fees

Staff development

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Olher staff costs

Staff costs

Educational supplies

Agency Staff

Examination fees

Staif development

Educational consultancy

Other direct costs

Other staff costs

Educational
Activities

2025
€

9,478,099

332,212

358,085

164,724

62,350

49,579

111,081

82,741

Total
funds

2025
t

g,47g,og9

332,212

358,085

164,724

62,350

49,579

f1,481
82,701

10,638,831 10,638,831

Educational
Activities

2024
t

6,180,915

352,702

75,146

153,400

54,470

60,465

51,595

45,998

Total
funds
2424

t

6,'180,915

352,702

75,146

153,400

54,474

60,465

51,595

45,998

6,974,691 6,974,691
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Agency staff

Statl development

Technology costs

Energy

Catering

Maintenance of premises and equipment

Rates

Other staff costs

lnsurance

Other premises costs

Cleaning

Governance

Non cash pension costs

Other support costs

Legal and professional

Consultancy fees

Educational
Activities

2025
!

2 153,878

849,312

23 660
40 Qt 1IU,JA I

161 198

177,096

406 740

115.507

122 3'iS

36,305

43.0",2

1 40,1 30

16.721
/a )ai

(zos,ooo)

773.432

54.653

13.640

Total
funds

2025
I

2,153,979

849,312

23,660

18,341

161,'198

177,096

406,740

115,507

122,3',t9

36,305

43,412

140,130

16,721

43,370

(205,000)

773,432

54,653

13,640

4,944,314 4,9M,314

Page 3i8



SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Analysis of expenditure by activities (eontinued)

Analysis of support costs (continued)

Staff costs

Depreciation

Agency Staff

Staff development

Technology costs

Energy

Catering

Maintenance of premises and equipment

Rates

Other staff costs

lnsurance

Other premises costs

Cleaning

Governance

Non cash pension costs

Other support costs

Legal and professional

Consultancy fees

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Fees paid to auditors for:

- Audit fee

- Other Services

Educational
Activities

2024
L

1,736,662

923.280

23,524

16,863

11 1,519

272,809

302,831

18,089

86,1 34

11,781

27,754

65,041

12,308

21,039

(165,000)

148,568

294,174

54,320

Total
funds
2024

t

1,736$62

923,280

23,s24

16,863

1'11,519

272.849

302,831

18,089

86,1 34

11,781

27,750

65,041

12,308

21,039

(165,000)

148,568

294,174

54.320

L

3,961,692 3,961,632

14',1,236 23,519

849,312 923,280

2024
t

2025
s

19,375

3,125

11,800

,,*
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2A25

10. Staff

a. Staff costs and employee benefits

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Pension costs

Agency staff costs

Staff restructuring costs

Non cash pension costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Severance payment

2025
I

8,552,053

1,006,394

2,073,530

20.2,1

,l

5,968 301

63'1,62:i

1,304.521

11,631,977

381,745

(205,000)

7.904,44t;

98,67C)

1 a 1'.74'

(16s,00c))

11,808,722 7 .851 .2,t7'

20.?tt
,i

1 3.1 
"\21

rJ. tJz.

24.2,1

No. No.

-2

2025

b. Severance payments

The Trust paid l- severance payments in the year \2A24 - f1 3.132). disclosed in the following bands:

2425

t0 - 125.000

c. Special staff severance payment

lncluded in staif restructuring costs special severance payments of lNlL (2024 L13.132\
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

10. Staff (continued)

d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows:

Teaching

Administration and support

Management

2025
No.

2024
No.

89 67

137 98

14 10

24A 175

e. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
f60,000 was:

2424
No.

2025
No.

ln the band t60,001 - f70,000
ln the band f70,00'1 - 180,000

ln the band f80,001 - t90,000
ln the band f90,001 - t100,000
ln the band f 110,001 - t120,000

2A

6

2

3

1

q

Z

1

1

f. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits (including employer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the Trust was 11,565,938 (2024 - Ll,127,106).
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11.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Central services

The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

. Human resources

. Financial services

. Legal services

. Marketing and communications

. Governance services
o lT strategy and project services

The Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

Flat percentage of General annual grant (GAG) (including 16-19) income. During the year this was 7.5%.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Saracens High School

Saracens Bell Lane

Total

202,{
,l

39,009

12,1Ait

829,489 51 ,'1 51

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of servicers
they provide under.taking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2025
t

667,111

162,378

12.

2025
€

2024

C Alcock, CEO and Accounting Officer Remuneration

Pension contributions paid

9s,000 - 90 000 -
100,000 95,c00
20,000 - 20 0c)0 -

25,000 25 000

13.

During the year ended 31 August 2025, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2024 - tNlL).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an alternative
to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and

officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occulrlng whilst on acaderny
business, and provides cover up to t10,000,000. lt ls not possible to quantify the Trustees and offic€)rs

indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

14. Tangible fixed assets

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2A24

Additions

At 31 August 2025

Depreciation
At 1 September 2424

Charge for the year

At 3'1 August 2025

Net book value

At 31 August 2025

At 31 August 2024

Stock

Long-term
leasehold
property

s

32,125,480

2,464

Furniture
and

equipment
t

588,885

19,690

Computer
equipment

f
Total

€

1,250,CI42 33,964,407

70,543 92,697

32,127,944 608,575 1,320,585 34,057,104

1,452,595

589,044

327,211

109,226

970,685 2,750,491

151,442 849,312

2,041,639 436,437 1.121,727 3,599,803

30,086,305 172,138 198,858 30,457,301

30,672,885 261,674 279,357 31,213,516

On 'l 1 November 2021, the London Borough of Barnet granted a long leasehold to the Trust for a new
school building for peppercorn rent. lt has been brought into the accounts at deprecialed replacement
cost and it is being depreciated in accordance with the Trust's accounting policy.

15. Stocks

2025
I

1,243

2024
t

1 ALO
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

16. Debtors

Due within one year

Trade debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

VAT recoverable

17. Current asset investments

Unlisted investments (liquid)

18. Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income at 1 September 2024

Resources deffered during the year

Amounts released from previous periods

202tt
e

202s
€

20,741

506,336

26,396

22,441

973,981

121,681

553,473 1,118,103

250,000 500,00c1

2025
f

113,328

467,516

408,714

2024
e

407,021',

385,836

699,427

2024
I

2025
€

989,558 1,492,290

114,730 45.327

110,340 114,730

(114,730) (45,3'.21'.)

202,1
t

2025
s

_*11f1 __:^]-
As of the balance sheet date, the Trust held funds received in advance, including DfE grant income for the
202512026 school year, as well as payments for school trips and school dinners.
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19. Statement of funds

Balance at 1

September
2024

€

Unrestricted
funds

General Funds -
all funds 363,456

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Transfers
lncome Expenditure in/out

€€€

550,923 (225,4101

Balance at
Gains/ 31 August

(Losses) 2025se

688,969

Restricted
general funds

General annual
grant (GAG)

Pupil premium

Teachers
pension grant

Teachers pay
grant

Local and other
government
grants

Other DfE/ESFA
Covid-19 funding

16-19 core
funding

Others

Core school
budget grant

Pension reserve

1,123,31-6 9,450,701

728,728

311,285

164,769

806,560

178,113

1,632,676

717,101

352,429

14,000

(9,821,763)

(728,7281

(311,285)

(164,769)

(806,560)

(178,1 13)

(1,632,676)

(717,101)

(352,428)

205,000

(5,004) -- 747,250

(219,000)

1,123,316 14,356,361 (14,508,423) (5,004) (219,000) 747,25O
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SAR^ACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August

2024 lncome Expenditure in/out (Losses) 2025t€€s€E
Restricted fixed
asset funds

Restricted fixed
asset funds - all
funds 31,213,916 87,693 (849,312) 5,004 - 30,457,30'l

Total Restricted
funds 32,337,232 14,444,054 (15,357,735) - (219,000) 31,204,551

Balance at 1

September Transfers Gains/
2024 lncome Expenditure in/ourt (Losses)

t€€E€,i
rotarfunds j11i.* :rr^,*: Iu,utlr€ ________= __g,r,r1) ryj:
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as iollows:

Unresitricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of tlre
charitable oblects of the Trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset furrds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes.

Restricted general funds are resources for educationai purposes.

Under the funding agreement wiih the Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limlt on llre
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 3.1 August 2025.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2A25

19. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at
1 September

2023
e

lncome Expenditure
LL

(8,270) s83,659 (21 1,933)

Balance at
Gains/ 31 August

(Losses) 2024
tt

- 363,456

Transfers
in/out

I
Unrestricted
funds

General Funds -
all funds

Restricted
general funds

General annual
grant (GAG)

Pupil premium

Teachers
pension grant

Teachers pay
grant

Local and other
government
grants

Other income

Donations
'16-19 core
funding

Pension reserve

1.41 1 .510 6,931 ,168

518,661

749,922

86,1 34

401 ,1 83

266,509

25,178

aA7 0(o

(346,000)

(7,100,624)

(518,661)

(709,922)

(86,134)

(401 183)

(266,509)

(25,178)

(8s7,959)

165,000

(1 18,738) 1,123,316

181.000

1 ,411 ,510 9,4sA,714 (9,801,170) (1 18,738) 1 81 ,000 1 ,'1 23,31 6
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at 1

September
2423

I
Restricted fixed
asset funds

Restricted fixed
asset lunds - all
funds 28,537,926

Other capital
income

Land and
Buildings
transferred on
conversion

Transferi;
lncome Expenditure inlout

leil

95,249

3,654

(865,792) 1 18,73t1

3,381,629 (57,488)

Gains/
(Losses)

t

Balance at
3'1 August

20i74.

f:.

27,886,121

J,O04

3,324.141

28,537,926 3,480,532 (e23,280) 1aB,73t\ 31,213,9',6

Total Restricted
funds 29.949,436 12.931,246 (10,724.450) 181 ,000 32,337 ,2:\2

rotarfunds j-lj.. j:1IT lll=u.)
Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2025 were allocated as follows:

'181,000 32,700,688i

Saracens High School

Saracens Bell Lane

Saracens Multi Academy Trust

Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset fund

Total

The following entity is carrying a net deficit on its portion of the funds as iollows.

zo25
E

1 ,510,014
(80,918)

7,123

202t1
f

1,495,1V4

5,811

(14,212t)

1,436,219

30,457,301

1,486.7-,721

31 ,213,91€i

31,893,520
:

32,700.68ti
::

Deficit
t

(80,91€r)Saracens Bell Lane
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

19. Statement of funds (continued)

The school incurred higher expenses during the period due to a significant reliance on agency staff and
substantial work required on the premises.

The Trust is taking the following action to return the entity to surplus:

The Trust is committed to assisting the school in raising academic outcomes and achieving financial
stability.Over the medium term, the Trust aims to bring the academy to a surplus position by working
closely with the Principal to develop a comprehensive plan that reduces reliance on agency suppoft and
lowers teaching statf costs, while ensuring continued improvement.

Tota! cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and

educational Other
support support

staff costs staff costs
ef,

Other costs
Educational excluding

supplies depreciation
€€

Saracens High School

Saracens Bell Lane

Saracens Multi Academy Trust

LGPS

Saracens High School

Saracens Bell Lane

Saracens Multi Academy Trust

LGPS

Trust

7,176,888

2,657,220

2,076

1,297,789

205,795

673,954

(205,000)

459,827

86,688

1,740007
467,238

171,351

Total
2025

€

10,674,511

3,416,941

847,38',1

(205,000)

Trust 9,836,184 1,972,538 546,515 2,378,596 14,733,833
:::::

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Teaching
and

educational Other
support staff support staff

Other costs
Educational excluding

supplies depreciation
tt

Total
2424

e
costs

c

6,073,163

182,898

costs
t

1,695,594

13,441

51,1 51

(16s,000)

614,057

4,1 05

1,244,357

18,356

280,981

9,627,171

214,695

336,237

(165,000)

6,256,061 1,595,186 618,162 1,543,694 10,0.13,.103

Page 49



20.

SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAfEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year

Total

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year

Unrestricted Restricted
funds funds
2025 2025

EE

688 969 1,736 80t]

- (989,558)

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2025

f

30,457,301

Total
funds

2025
,i

30,457,301

2,425,777'

(989,558)

688,969 747,250 30,457,301 31,893,5201

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year

Total

Unrestricted
funds
2024

I

JOJ.430

RestricterJ
funds
1n.1.4

t1

I b l5 btlt)

(1 492.290)

Restricted
fixed asset

funds
2424

t
31,213,916

Total
funrls;
20?-tl

t:.

31 .2i 3.91€

2.979.462

(1.492,ZsC)

363 456 1.123.316 3'1 .213.916 32.700 688
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited bY guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3{ AUGUST 2025

Reconciliation of net (expenditure)/income to net cash flow from operating activities

2425
€

Net (expenditure)/income for the year (as per Statement of financial
activities)

2424
L

(588,168) 2,578,522

Adjustments for:
Depreciation

Capital grants frorn DIE and other capital income

lnterest receivable

Defined benefit pension scherne cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

lncrease in stocks

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
(Decrease)/increase in creditors

(Gain )/Loss on disposal

Assets lransferred on conversion

Net cash used in operating activities

22. Cash flows from investing activities

lnterest lncome

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Proceeds from the sale oJ tangible fixed assets

Proceeds lrom the sale of investments

Capitai grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

23. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

849,312

(87,806)

(36,778)

(205,000)

(14,000)

197

564,630

{502,731_21

923,280

(3,480,532)

(48,496)

(165,000)

346,000

(1,440)

(249,16s)

667,739

(3,6s4)

(3,381,629)

(20,345) {2,814,375)

2A25
E

36,778

(92,697)

250,000

87,806

2024
t

48,496

{621,e87)
4,500

3,480,532

281,887 2,911,541

2A25 2024
tf

1,621,061 1 ,359,519

1,62't,061 1 ,359,519
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST
(A eompany limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

24. Analysis of changes in net debt

Atl
September

2424
€

1,359,519

500,000

At 31
Cash flows August 202$

tg
261,542 1,621,061

(250,000) 250,000

Cash at bank and in hand

Liquid investments

25. Capitalcommitments

Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements

Acquisition of tangible fixed assets

1,859,519 11,542 1,871,061

208,000

20t?"4.

t:
2425

t

26. Pensioncommitments

The Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teac:rers' Pensron Scheme Englarrd
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff: and the Local Government Pension Scheme {LGPS) i:r
non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Barnet Pension Fund Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest valuation ol the TPS related to the period ended 31 Marcl^r 2020 and the latest triennial
valuationforLGPSrelatediotheperiodended3l March2022. TheTrusthasreceivedanactuarial report
relating to lhe valuation of the LGPS as at 31 August 2025.

Contributionsamountinglot226,T52 werepayabletotheschemesat3l August2025(2024-L201 ,223)
and are !ncluded within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, definerl benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers'Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is autc,matic for fuil-time ieachers; in

academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and ernployer makes contrjbutions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

26. Pensioncommitments(continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to ensure scheme costs are recognised
and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2A20. the valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7'/o above the rate of CPl. The
key elements of the valuation outcome are:

. employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy).This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

r total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of t262,000 million and notional assets (eslimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of L222,2A0 million, giving a
notional past service deflcit of f39,800 million

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 Agril 2A24. The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April2027.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to e 1,013,083 QA24 - e659,238).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employersl2}l9l04lteachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan. Accordingly,
the Academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for its
contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy trust has set out
above, the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2025 was e713,000 (2024 -
f610,000), of which employer's contributions totalled f559,000 (2024 - e488,000) and employees'
contributions totalled t154,000 (2024 - €132,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are
between 22.8 and 28.8 per cent for employers and 5.5 and 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Trust, who were the employees
transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to,
and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on
conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the Trust at the
balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK.
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SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

26. Pensioncommitments(continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

London Borough of Barnet Pension Fund

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate ol increase for pensions in payment/inflation

Discount rate lor scheme Iiabilities

Retiring today

Males

Females

Retiring in 20 years

Males

Females

Sensitivity analysis

London Borough of Barnet Pension Fund

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Morlality assumptton - 1 year increase

Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease

CPI rate +0.1%

CPI rate -0.1%

20.2,t
/t)

2025
ofto

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future irnprovements in mortality rat,3si.

The assumed lile expectations on retirement age 65 are:

3.70

2.70

6.10

2025
Years

21.6

24.3

22.0

25.6

365
255
500

24'.2,r

Yeerrs

21.4

Z/+ -Z

zt.o
2r5.6

242,1
t000

2025
€000

(6e)

69

101

(101)

70

(70)

(81)
a,l

109

(10e)

Oz:-

(82)
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Pension commitments (continued)

Share of scheme assets

The Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was f96,000 12024 - t114,000).

The amounts recognised in the Slatement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost

lnterest income

lnterest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Conversion of academy trust

Current service cost

lnterest cost

Em ployee contributions

Actuarial gains

Benefits paid

At 31 August

At 31
August 2025

t
1,074,000

1,349,000

138,000

193,000

At 31 August
2024

I
1 ,196,560

1,422,960

145,204

243,284

2,754,000 2,968,000

2425
t

(354,000)

163,000

(149,000)

2024
t

(323,000)

87,000

(72,000)

(340,000) (308,000)

2425
I

2,968,000

354,000

149,000

154,000

(867,000)

(4,000)

2024
!

1,303,000

1 , 149.000

323,000

72,040

132,000

(3,000)

(8,000)

2,754,000 2,968,000

Page 55



SARACENS MULTI ACADEMY TRUST

{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2025

26. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

At 1 September
Conversion of academy trust

lnterest income

Actuarial (losses)lgains

Employer contributions

Employee contributions

Benefits paid

At 31 August

Not later than -1 year

Later ihan .1 year and not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

20"24.

l:"

2025
€

2,968,000

163,000

(1,086,000)

559,000

154,000

(4,000)

1.303,000

788.000

87,000

178.000

488.000

132,000

(8,0t)0)

27.

28.

Contingent asset

As at 31 August 2025 the actuarial valuation of the Local Government Pension Scheme was calculated
as a f 1 354,000 surplus (2024. L172,000 surplus). As this valuation does rot give rise to a virtually certain
economic benefit for the trust, either in the form of a reduction in future corrtributions or a cash settlement.
any surplus arising on the valuation is recognised solely as a contingent asset.

Operating lease commitments

At 3i Augusa 2025 the Trust had commitments to make future minimurn lease payments undel non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

2,754,000 2,968,000
::

151,202 298.978

212,198 584 3',4

694

20"ztl
f:

2025
€

_iIf1 __113,
To enable the Trust to accommodate extra pupils over the next three years. the trustees have agreed trl
hire 3 temporary classrooms 2 digital suites with t health suite including 2 toilet facililies. These will be in

the form of a modular building within the current Saracens High School siie. The total cost of this over 3

years will be 1830,505. As the contract states, at the end of the 3 year perirrd. the modular building will 5,:
dismantled and returned to the lessor.

29. Members'liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the, assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while helshe is a member, or within one yeitr after helshe ceases to be a

member, such amount as may be required. not exceeding 110 for the debts and liabililies contracted
before heishe ceases to be a member.
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30. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the DfE of all transactions made on
or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the Trust's financial regulations
and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related pady transactions.

The Trust purchased storage space of Nil (2024; 1180) in the period from Shurgard UK. lan Marcus, a
trustee is a Director of Shurgard Self Storage SA. At the year end, Nil (2024: Nil) was outstanding.

During the year a donation of Nil (2024: t8,450) was received from Cofra Holdings, the parent company
of Redevco, a company for which lan Marcus, a Trustee, is an advisory Board member.

During the year a cash donation of f300 (2024; Nil) was received from Peter Harvey, who is Member of
the SHS LGB and Audit & Risk Committee at Saracens MAT.

During the year a donation of t60,266 (2024: L21,390) was received from the Priory Foundation for a
mixture of capital and revenue items, an entity in which N Wray, a Member, is a Trustee and Gordon
Banks, a Trustee, is a trustee. At the year end,822,017 (2024: Nil) was outstanding.

31. Post balance sheet events

On 1 October 2025, Broadfields Primary School joined the Saracens Multi-Academy Trust and became
Saracens Broadfields.
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